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TAPSCOTT LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee]

TRUSTEES REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3137 AUGUST 2019

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financia] statements and auditors reports of the
cheritable company for the period 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2018. The annual report serves the
purposes of both a Trustees’ report, and & directors’ report under company law.

For the pericd 1% September 2018 to 31 August 2018, the Trust operated three pamary academies in the
Longon Borough of Newham and from 19 Aprit 2018 to 317 August 2018 the Trust afso operated North
Beckton Primary School, foliowing its conversion. The Trust provides education for pupils aged 3 to 11 with
a pupil capacity of 2,832 and a rolf of 2,585 in the schaol census on October 2048, Two of the schoofs within
the Trust also provitie resaurce provision placsments which equates to 22 places across the two setiings.

STRUCTURE, GOVERMANCE ARD MANAGEMENT

Constitutich
The Tapscott Learning Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charlly. The charitable
company's memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the Trust.

The Trustees of The Tapscolt Learning Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the
purposes of company law. The Charitable Company is known as The Tapscott Learning Trust.

Details of the Trustees who served thioughout the year are included in the Reference and Adminlstrative
Cetails on page 3.

Members Liability

Each member of the charitable compainy undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company
in the event of # being wound up while they are 2 member, or within one year after they cease lo be a
member, such amount as may be reguired, nat exceading £10, for the debts and Rabilties contracted before
they ceased to be & member.

Principal Activities

The pringipal sctivity of The Tapscott Leamning Frust is to advance for the public benefit, education in the
Linited ngdom without prejudice ta the generafity of the faregoing, by establishing, maintaining, carrying
on, managing and developing schaols offering a broad and bafanced curriculus.

Methad of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees

The number of Trustees shall be not less than three and nat subject to a maximum, During the 2018/149
period, the Tapscott Learning Trust listed the following eight Trustees:- the Chief Executive Officer, 5
Trustees appainted by the Members and 2 Trustees co-opted by Trustess. Amongst Trustees o the Board
during 2018-18, 2 were also parents of pupils within the Trust.

Trustees are appointed for a term of 4 years. Subject to remaining eligible, any Trustee may be re-
appointed or re-elected, The Chief Executive Officer shall be & Trustes for as long as he remains in office.

Policies and Proceduras Adopted for the Inductlan and Yraining of Trustess

During the period under review, Trustees held 6 main board meetings plus 3 meetings of the sub- committes
Finance, Operations & Resources, 3 meetings of the sub-commities Aucht & Risk and 3 mestings of the
sib-committee Safeguarding & Standards. Trustees are recrulted fo meet the needs of the Trust to support
its continued develapment and growth. Where a skills gap is identified, or ah appropriately experienced
candidate for the Board is identified, the interview and appointment of further Trustees is 2 malter reserved
for the Board, subject to the provisions of the Trust's articles. irduction training is provided on educational,
fegat and financial matters. Board meetings are held at different school locations.
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TAPSCOTT LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee]

TRUSTEES REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T AUGUSY 2019

All Trustess are provided with capies of pollcies, procedures, minutes, budgets, plans and other documents
that they wifl need to understand their role as Trustees. Induction is informal and tatiored to the speciic
needs of the individual, Trustees also attend the Trust's annual governance event which was held on
Tuesday 26" February 2018 and this provided training in areas such as strategy, finance, assessment and
safeguarding, Trustees also discuss any tralning needs at board mestings and this year these have
included the new fimance system and pupil premiom.

Drganisatioral Structure

The Board of Trustees has established a management struciure to enable its efficient runhirg, The
structure consists of three levels; The memiers, Trustees and the executive group who are made up of
the CEQ and the Senior Operations Team. The Board of Trustees has considered its role and decided
that the role of the Trustees is to approve the strateqgic direction and ohjectives of the academies and
monitor their progress towards these ohjsctives. The Board of Trustees has defegated althority fo the
CEO and the Senior Management Team (see page 1) to make executive decisions over the day to day
running of the Trust, in accordance with its published Scheme of Detegation,

Trustees are respansibie for ensuring clarity of vision, the ethos and strategic direction of the Trust, holding
executive ieaders to account for the educational performance and overseeing the financiat perormances
of the Trust, ensuring that money there is value for money.

The Board of Trustees has appraved terms of reference for three commitices: Finance, Cperations &
Resolrce, Audit & Risk and Safeguarding & Standards,

At schaot level, the Local Advisory Boards ate responsiblz ko the Trustees and are responsible for ensuning
that the schools are working within the vision, misgion and policies of the Trust to achisve the strategic
priorities and to agsure the educational and financial performance of the schools. The terms of reference
for the Locat Advisory Boards are reviewed annually. The structure of each Local Advisory Board consists
of the head teacher, 2 elected parent govemors, T elected staif governar, 3 co-opted governars and 2
board appointed governors, To ensure that Trustees have the apporfunity to consult, inform and involve
Lacal Advisory Boards. representatives from the Local Advisory Boards are invited to joirtthe Trust's three
sub-committee, Operations & Resource, Safeguarding & Standards and Audit & Risk. A member of the
Trust's santar leadership team all Lecal Advisory Board meetings.

The Trust has an established Pupil Parliament, which is an sdvisory board. Members of this board are made
up of the chair and vice chair of each of the schoal's School Council, wha are elected by their feliow pupils.
The Pupil Partisment reports to the Board of Trustees at three meetings during the academic vear, once
per ternt.

Related parties and cooperation with other organisations

Buring 1% September 2018 and 312 March 2019, the Trust worked in parthership to support North Beckton
Primary Schaol with an agreed Service Leve] Agreement. On 17 April, following a full cansuitation with att
stakeholders, North Beckton formally joined the Trust.

During 1% September 2018 and 315 March 2019, the Trust worked in partnership with Rebecea Cheetham
Mursery & Children's Centre with an agreed Service Level Agreement to cover a range of areas such as
the support of the Advisory Executive Head Teacher, ICT, governor services and ofher services and
support.

Arrangements for seiting pay and remuneration of key management personnel
The Trust's senior lzadership team is made up of the Chief Executive Officer, the Finance Directar, the
Director of the Training Hub and the Company Secretary.
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TAPSCOTT LEARNING TRUSTY
(A& Company Limited by Guarantes)

TRUSTEES REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ERDED 345 AUGUST 2015

Chirf Executive Officer {(CED)

The salary and job dascription of the CEQ is daetermined annually by a committes of Trustaes, and this
year was evafuated by an independent external advisor who made recommendations to the Trustees,
which they have adopted. The Chief Executive's salary is based upon the following elements:

o & salary range for the role of Chief Exscutive Officer is based on the national formufa for Head
Teachers, agreed with the Standard Teachers Pay and Condltions.

¢ An element recognising the role as an Executive Head Teacher within the Trust

» An glement recagnising the additional responsihilities identified in the CEC job description which are
a Mational Leader of Education, who during the year 2018M9 supported as Acting Executive Head
Teacher who continued to advise Morth Beckion Primary School untf conversion and Advisory
Executive Head Teacher at Rebecca Cheetham Mursery and Children's Centre including advisory
MLE wark i an ail thraugh schoo! and supporting the Tailored Support Programme,

The Trust has a transparent and clear accountable system far the pay structure of its Chief Executive Officar
and this is approved by Trustees and clearly minuted. The Pay Policy and Finance Policy are reviewed and
updated annuafly.

JORB DESCRIPTIONS

CEQ
The Frust's CEO role includes the role of Executive Head Teacher and Head of School Improvement as
welf as requiring the individual to be a strategic leader who develops and articulates the Trust's vision and
ethos and who inspires and empowers others to share in achisving these to ensure that standards in
education are raised. The CEOQ is accountable and {akes regponsikifity for the performance of alt of the
schools within the Trist and s committed (o creating the best oppottunities for all students to fulfit their
patertial. The role of the GEC will encompass:-

» Education and Curriculum
Strategic and Business Leaderghip
Educstion and Trust Bevelopment
Education guality, systems and management
innovation and creativity

Finance Dlrectar, Director of the Tralning Hub, Company Secretary and HR Marager
The job descriptions of the Finance Qirector, the Director of the Training Hub and the Company Secretary
are evaluated and benchmarked regularly by the Trust's external HE advisors.

OBJECTIVES, AIMS AND ACTIVITIES

The Trust's schoods work in partnership and this ethos continues to be embedded in our vision
of warking as a cofiective but keeping unique characteristics and adapiations needed to aflow
the schools to meef the neads of their 1ocal and wider communitiss.

We also work in parthership with other settings such as Rebecca Cheetham Nursery and
Children's Centre and, through our school improvement support work, with other settings
across the region.

Misslon

Chur mission is to ensure delivery of the best quality education, learming and development of basic skills,
knowledge and understanding that ehsures ALL of our puplis receive the best start in life and are
suceessful in maving through their education; leaving them well prepared for their futures.

Vision
Ali pupils withir the Trust will have the right te an outstanding education irrespective of social, economic or
dempographic factars.
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TAPSCOTT LEARNING TRUST
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TRUSTEES REPORT
FCOR THE YEAR EKDED 315 AUGLIST 2819

Aims

&

That our pupils will always be at the comerstone of our Truzt and have an effective voice in the work
that we do.

T ensure that Safeguarding is non-negotiable and consistently applied in alf schools and seltings.
That afl schools wilt promaote egurality and inclusivity for all,

Ta form a platform for other schools with similar vizgions and ethos ta join us for the mutual
improvement of outcomes for alt pupils and to support other schoals in reaching thess,
working collaboratively and leading in best practice.

To ensure that our schools offer a broad and balanced curiculum sehcompassing the ars

and sport: ag well 2s offering a vast array of experiences that will alfow our pupils to access
apportunitizs that may not always be available to them,

To be a beacon emptloyer for feaching professionals at all stages of their career and to

ensure that the Trust's Training Hub will he af the forefront far training our statt.

To provide a consistent experience of high expectations,

To ensure that the Trust is whaliy self -sufficient and aperationally secure: with clear
sommunity-led focus; retaining local accessibilify and transparency.

To ensure effective governance at afl levels offering excellent challenge and strategic

sUpport.

KEY STRATEGIC YEAR PRIORITIES
This was the second of operating for the Tapscott Learning Trust and Trustees agreed four key strakenic
priorities for the Trust:

Priority 1:
To devsiop the structures of the Trust fo support and develop schools and to reduce workloads and
centralize services within the Trust.

¢ 3 clear and effective governance structure — achieved

# 3 clear system and structure in place for reporing and holding schools to sccount - achiaved

» pupils making effective progress in attainment and for schools to be meeting the needs of its pupils
- achieved

» effective support, challenge and services to improve the offer for schools — achieved

+ compliance with statutory reguiremesnts and is an effective organisaiion in masting the needs of our
schoals to ensure exceflent delivery — achieved

» 2l schools are dood or better within the Trust and performing ih the top 20% of schools - aspects
achieved and continuing to develop

# schools to be able to focus on families and teaching & learning rather than other areas - aspects
achieved and continuing 1o develop

Priority 2
To build an effective financial team, systems and budgeting confrols to reduce risk ang workipad for
schools, raising mora income to provide services:

s build effective financial systems to ensure effective contral to rigk and WFM success - achieved

= build a central team o reduce worklzad at schoof fevel with cansistent systems used across the Trust
- aspecls achieved and coniinuing to develop

o reduce costs for services and improve qualidy allowing for more money to be spent on pupils —
aspects achieved and continuing to develop

= ensure compliant processes in ine with the Education & Skills Funding Ageney (EFSAY guidetines
and the Acadsemies Financial Handbook — achieved

» ensure clear processing systems in fine with EU guidelines — achieved

» denerate income to support education of pupils through successful grant applications and use of
facilities and services - aspects achieved and continuing tc develop
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TAPSCOTT LEARNING TRUST
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TRUSTEES REPORY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3137 AUGUST 201%

Priority 3
To develop an effective schod] improvement and professional development programme through schod! to
schaol suppor, continued professionat development {CPDY), intervention and chaliengs:
s develap effective school improvement and professional development — achieved
s effective school improvement plan and systems - achieved
« contiie Lo perform at high standards and those at RE wili make rapid improvements — gchieved
sschool to schock support ensures effective support for rapid improvement/continued expectations —
achieved
= support effective and focused Continued Professional Development for all schools — achieved

Priority 4
To develop effective systems of communications with 2l stakehalders across the whole Trust:
s clear and effective lines of communlcation to support schooks to run effectively - aspects achieved
and cantinuing to develop
s Pupil/Parent/Staff vaica are heard through the Trust's development and our work - aspecls achieved
and continting to develop
» Effective systems of communications - aspecis achigved and cantinuing la develop

The MAT Development and Improvement Fund {MDIF)

The Trust was successiul in its bid refated {o the Trust growth and was awarded £140,000, This grant is
awarded by the Department of Education to sustain growth. Planning for the longer term is oritical for
sustainable growth and the integration of curriculum and financial planning is one of the distinctive
eharacteristics of effective schools. However after the parameters of the grant were changed the Trust
received half the amount awsardad £70,000 phus £4 500 for the Integrated Curricuium and Finance plan
{ICEP) which was a condition of the grant which identified some areas for further development.

The grant has heen fully spent in line with the expected purposs and this has allowed the Trust to ensure
that B0 members of stafi have bean trained in AE, The Trust’s Training Hub Director's role and SENCa
support. This wilt be independently audited, which is 2 reguirement of the grant,

STRATESGIC REFORT

Achigvementis and Performmance

The Tapscott Learning Trust continues to meet its ochjectives. o Aptil 2018 Norh Beckton Primary Schoal
joined the Trust. The Trust had been supporting the schoot previously for 18 months and this support had
seen rapid improvemnents in outeomas, which were recognised by external bodies.

Golng Cancerm

After making appropriate enguiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Trust
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it
cortinues to adapt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements, Further detalls regarding
the adoption of the going concern basia can be found in the Accounting Policies.
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TAPSCDTT LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guaranteg)

TRUSTEES REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3137 AUGUST 2015

Trust Wide Activities 201819

This was aur second year of operation and much of our development has centered around the continued
provision of central services, mainly in Health & Safety, finances, HR, school development improvement
and suppart, governance and compliance and aisa the Trainlng and Sports hubs, The central team consists
of.-

« A central teem compriging of the CEQ, Finance Director, Executive Trust Officer which
encompasses the Company Secretary role, HR Manager plus a full time Project Officer providing
administration support. The Training Hub consists of Training Hub Director, a Sparis Hub lead
and a Mewly Guaflhed Teacher (NQT) Manager and shared Leaming Support Teacher.

s I 2018/18 the Trust cutseurced arrangements for HR and payroll, core campliance, gavernance,
Health & Safety management, ICT support and MIS systems and some quality sssurance work
regarding standards and school development.

= TTLT also has a number of staff at schaol ievel who perform other central Triest rades induding a
Health & Safety L ead, a Finance & Census Lead, a Policy & Rigk Assessment Lead and a payrolf
officer. TTLT has Head Teachers who also tshe key lead roles in areas such as safeguarding,
assessment, ICT, Pupi Pariament, wellbeing and EYFS, The MDIF bid also allowed us ta
appoint & lead SENco Raole, leading on autism education training and provision,

The Trust has also aligned the work of key teams to ensure that we are developing more aligned and
effective systems including reporing processes and developing our central rote of partnership. These
working groups are focussd on key areas to ensure glignment. The groups are made up of the four Trust
schools but alse include membership from other scheoks that we are currently either supporting or work in
partnership with, The following groups have met and developed these areas of the central Trust work:

Working Groupl Networks Areas Developed acrass the Trust

Finance and Business group — led by the » Procuring and implementing a new finance

finance Director {FO) and include af School sysiem

Business Manzgers and finance staff Developing response and actions ir line with
aldit recommendations and best practice

Joint finance policy and systems

Implementation of procedures and systems for
financtal areas of work

Census reporting

The SEND Group — All Specist Educational Needs
Co-ordinators (SENCOs} with exernal facilitation
from a Matioral Leader of Education LE fram JFK
Schod in Newham and ted by the CEG

Developing and agresing & new cloud based
system for creating effective plans and
provision mapping

Moderation of plans and provisions, identificatian
of raining needs

Policy Management Group—
Led by tead policy and risk marager, SBMs
Healh & Safety Lead and FD

Combine Trust wide list of policies

Shared and aligned complisnce calendar for
governance and policy

Joint modet GOPR, policy and procedures
across the Trust

Aligned Risk Management policy at Trust and
schoof level

Aligried Business Continuity Plans
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TARSCOTT | EARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes}

TRUSTEES REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315 AUGUST 201%

Attendance Network — All leads responsiiie fur
aitendance, absence and admissions

Agreed reporting to Trust

Following the Mewham admissions policy
Dealing with pugits with CME

fmaroving attendance and Persistent

Atterdance al schools

Head Teachers/School Development Network
CED, all Head teachers and Head of schools,
inciuding partner schoals and school supported.

Joint agread Head Teacher reporting systems

Planning and strategic development for foint
work across schoois in the Trust

Identification and development of affer of the
training hub

Jatnt warking projects

Staff Development and Weltbeing

= Compliance with the Standards and & Testing

Agency {STA) and Department of £ducation

ICT Strateqy and Development — Led By Head
Teacher for ICT deveiopment, Lead curriculim
development and technicians.

Joint systems for reporting ICT issues

Auditing effectivensss of ICT infrastructure

Development of cloud based systems for
education and Trust use.

Safeguarding
Lead by the Trust's DSL and all D3L officers from
each of the schools

Juint Safeguarding model policy

» Supervision for staff
» Aligned reporting for LAB and Trustee members

for Safeguarding
Ensuring all complisnce  documents  are
sompkated.

Mew cloud based systems in use at all schodls
for reporting and {racking concems

Assessment Sroup
Led By Head Teacher for assessment and
aszessment leaders

Aligned reporting and  summative  testing
arrangements.
Management  cross  Trust ahd  Schoot

develapment wark for moderation,
Compliance with 5TA and [HE

Early Years Graup
Led by Head Teacher and all EYFS coordinators

Joint mederation

Shared effoctive prachce

Progedures and developments far improving
EYFS provision internalfly and externally

Pugpll Pariiament
Led by members of each school's Student Councit
and supported by key Pupil Voice staff

ldentified key themes and joint working between
the schodls

tdentifizd and improved provision for resilience
through supplying books to each school thraugh
joint budgat.

Reporting to Trustees and School Councits to
1L.ABs to identify areas of devefopment

Site Management Group

Reviswing and establishing Trust wide premises
managemeant in line with Health & Safety

Workload Group

« Reviewing workioad practices acrass the Trust '

Reviewing ingividual practices and cansidearation
wihere this could be rolled out across the Trust
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TAPSCOTT LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantea}

TRUSTEES REFORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

Further centra! funding was focused at -

School Improvement,

Fhrough the effective partnership between the schoots and the schools development practices, the Trust
has developed a shared and deveioped system far schoof Improvement. This has led to effective processes
that have improved systems of moderation, peer support and challenae in zll of the schools we work with.
Thirough the Trustees Standards & Safeguarding Committee we have established systems to maonitor Trust
and individual schoot performance and Lo ensure that resources and expertise are targeted to the nesds
within the schools,

We have also offered scheol improvement services to other schonls, namely Rebecca Cheetham Mursary
and Chiddren's Centre which has led to the pravision improving its Ofsted outcome ig Qutstanding in 2019,
We have also provided extensive support at a focaf school which fed to the school improving its Ofsted
gutcome and the academic achievements of the pupils was raised significantly. Across the Trust we have
been successful in the number of staff being accredited as subject leaders of educatian, wiarking closehy
with a1 |local teaching schoal and providing support across the region through this partnership,

Following data results at the end of Key Stage 2, The Board of Trustees agreed to fund a Trust wide
reading project in 2618/49. The English Leads of each school discussad possible strategies and to
develop a fove of reading and an action pian was evaluated and agreed. Network meestings wers
focused and discursive around implemsntation and impact of approaches. Based on results at the end
of Key Stage 2 in May 2019, the project has been deered to be very successiul.

Training Hub
As part of agreed central role, TTLT has developed its own training hub which is created to deliver Rig by
effective Professional Development for staff across the Trust and schools we are working with. The main
facus of the Training Hubr has been in the following areas-

+ A NQT development and support programme

+ Early Middle and Senior Leadership Development including working with the IOE
» Autism Education Training Hub
& Subject Netwerk Meetings and Moderation

Trainlng Hub Summary:

The Training Hub has accomplished a remarkabie amount of success in the 2018-19 academic year. it
has continued tq build upon its successful start in our first year and has seen the hub grow bath in the
programmes offered to staif but also in developing our reputation within and cutside the borough, Ye
have continued to offer ang deliver professionat development in our core sress, as welt as improve, grow
and progress many of these programmes further, These have included the TTLT teadership programmae,
subfect network mestings, moderation, bespoke leadership packages, NQTs, AET ang spors
developmeni.

The Training Hub has also continued to offer fraining outside and developed new courses for aress in
EAL and Gecgraphy, as well as expanding the Sports CPD offers, We began our new Further
Development of Teaching and Learning programme which simed to give early carger teachers further
suppor beyond their NQT year. This programme also saw 4 external participarts attend our course.

Qur external participation numbers have increased by 21%. 41% of 2§l delegates participating in training
are from staff outside our Trust. This is largely due to the expansion and growth of AET, We have
developed naw partnerships in this area and have been very sctive within the regional field. Our AET lzad
cantinuas to work hard to promofe and look for new opporturiities as we now hold the exclusive contract
far Newham. Qur staff continue to benefit from the in-house training offered and this has cutminated in 55
rembers of staff trainad at either level 1 ar 2, saving the Trust of £8k in potential outgoings. As an
income generation taol fur the Trust, AET has shown consistent growth within the last two years and
income s up by 50%. We expect this trend to continue as we look to expand the work we do outside the
borough and have targeted another 25% growth in inceme in 2019-20. Growah is largely mapped
according to capacity and next year our AET laad will begin the process of expanding the number of
trainers we have to deliver ahd meet growth demands.
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Our Trust's NOTs have all been successful In passing their induction year due to the extansive
(raining and mentoring programme in place supported by afl schools within the Trust.

This year also saw the first of our apprentices finally achieve their apprenticeship and award status - one
af wihich will continue his employment within the Trust

The Training Hub was atsg heavily invalved in school improvement with a tocal school having been asked
to improve progress and attainment in reading for year 8, which was wsli below national averages, and
davelop staff knowledge of izaching and lesrning. We were asked to design a bespoke programma far
coarhing and mentoring for staff and early career development. This support heiped the schoot to
schieve a 'Good' Ofsted rating in their recent inspection, as well as see their resuits improve ta above
nationat levels, having been well-beiow in previoUs years.

Across the yest we have trained neatly 600 mambers of staff across various programmes. These nurmbers have
grows from last year by 15%. The savings to schools in uiilising the Training huk equate to over £200,000. Not
anty daes the Hub provide a vaiue for money option, but ensures staff receive a high level of expertise by 2
recognised trainer. Provision i carefully planned and considered, but also monitored and evaluated to ensure we
continue to improve. Next year will ses the start of a facilitators trafning course for all lead trainers within gur
Trust. This is a select group and ane of the ways we 2im to develop quality assurance and provide CFD for lead
trainers. The central training hub team is small, but to continie the success and meet demand we have had to
axpand our team to help with the work in areas of sport and sarly carger development. This has meant thal two
new members of staff. The hub has afso been successful in suppotting the epplication process of four members
of staff to become SLEs (Specialist leaders in Education}. This will support further school improvement work as
well ag accradit key trainers within the hub.

Our Sport Hub also continues its success and growth within this fiskd wiit continue next year. We saw the
initial Trust schools joined by B other schaals this year for access to competitions, training and in-house
support.

Sports Hub Report

The two main aims of the Sporls Hub are:

» To create oppartunities for children to fearn, coliaborate and compete through schaol sport

s To provide high qualily support and CPD to empower sl staff ta deliver high guality P.E lessons

The Trust's Sports Hub has expanded this academic year and now includes ten schoots. One of the aims
in our second year was {0 maintain the levet of competitions and develop new areas for sporis
participation. Dance, Gymnastics, Dodgeball and Ametican Football were alt introduced and the year
ended with & swimming gala - the first in Newham for many years.

Through consultation with staff and pupits some of the competitions were run a3 boy and girl only events
and we were supported by the University of East London (UEL}, New Vic College, Chance 2 Shine and
Active Newham at some of the events. We continue to build successful partnerships it our community
and have developed some strong relationships that support our growth, The number of children
accessing intra and external competitions has increased significantly.

Staft Wellbeing

in recognition of the value of the staff within the Trust, as part of an insurance policy, all staff on the Trust's
payrall had access to & variety of welfbeing and medical support provided by the School Advisary Services,
to counselling and financial advice from Employee Assist and to a range of weekly maoney saving offers
from Peric Bax. Feedoack fram this year's staff survey was extremely poslive and this will be further
investigated next year. At each schoal level staff wellbeing has become a priarity and a range of different
approaches are being piloted to suppor His,
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TAPSCOTT LEARNING TRUST

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" AUGUST 2019

Public Benefit
The Trustees confirm that they have referred to the guidance contained in the Charity Commission’s general
guidance on Public Benefit when reviewing the aims and objectives and in planning future activities. In
particular, the Trustees have considered how planned activities will contribute to the aims and objectives

they have set. The Admissions policy for each school can be found on the website for each setting.

Performance
At time of print, we are still awaiting the validated performance information for each of our schools within
the Trust to be released therefore information below for overall performance is currently unvalidated.

Ranelagh | Kensington | Curwen North TTLT | National
Beckton 1819
_ _ (17118)
No. K52 children 60 57 117 b 310 : '
Disapplications 4 10 3 4 21

High score : 13% 4 28% : 27%
2 Expected B Yo 44 th - 73%

:Saz f"ﬂs' Scaled score 09 104 0 06 (105) |
e Progress 0.1 0.3 {0.3)
| Greater depth - 0% (20%)
KS2 SATs: Expected B g 8% 78%
Writing Progress B 4 {0.2)
High scaore 0f B 46 1 {24%)

; Expected B9 g2t - 89" 91% 79%
;gfhim-s‘ Scaled score 08 0 0g 0 (104)
Progress : i (0.3
] . High score 47 0% G 34%)
gg:é‘““' Expected 86% B 9 86 0 78%
Scaled score 0 (108)
KS2 SATs: Sci Expected 2 EL B (82%)
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TAPSCOTT LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31T AUGUST 2019

KS2 SATs: EXS combined ; : : : 65% |
KS2 SATs: High score combined 1% : : 1%
Combined Average Scaled Score (Re, 08 108 08 09 (105)
Ma)
No. KS1 children 57 84 118 71 331
Greater depth ; 4 ; 25% ; {26%)

; Expected BE" 0 8 B0 ; (75%)
;51 d?”s- EP' (from R) 85% 89% 1% 1% 89%

maging BEP (from R) 7% 1% 30% 29% 23%

Greater depth 0 (16%)

: Expected : B 4% 80% 82% RN
ot e EP (from R) 87% 94% 86% 92% | 89%
g BEP (from R) 13% % 20% 31% 17%

Greater depth ] : (22%)

;s Expected 89 B 0 B (76%)
Es:hs'““' EP (from R) 80% 89% 83% 94% 86%

e BEP (from R) 13% 19% 29% 29% 24%
KS1SATs: Sci__| Expected 36 T7% 89% B0% 84% | (83%)
| KS1 SATs: EXS combined 81% TE% T8% B0% T9% N/A

KS1 SATs: GDS combined NIA
Phonics — Y1 87% 87% 87%

Phonics — Y2 {combines Y1+Y2) [ 92% | 92% | 93% | 93% |

GLD EYFS 87% 76% 80% BO%

1EP calculated as: EYFS 1 = WTS; 2 = EXS; 3= GDS
Below national average
Broadly in line with national average (+/-5% attainment; +/-1pt progress; +/-1pt scaled score)

All of our school are attaining at or above the national average and progress made is at or above the
national average. No schoals are performing below the national level or coasting levels.

Achievements

The Trust continued to develop its programmes and practices at the highest standards, retaining its Gold
quality mark for Professional Development from the UCL Institute of Education. In addition to this, schools
across the Trust have also been awarded and maintained a variety of awards, quality marks and
recognitions in a variety of different areas and each school lists these on their own websites. These can be
seen on each of the schools websites. We are very proud of our commitment to inclusion and that three of
our schools have been recognised as centres of excellence and that, in addition to this, Ranelagh Primary
School is a flagzhip school.

Infrastructure and Build Environments

The Executive have successfully delivered on the commitment to transform and deliver outstanding
facilities. The Trust is driven by a common determination to ensure that every pupil and member of staff
has the same opportunity to access facilities, which meet their needs in an equal and consistent manner.
Where meeting these requirements cannot be supported by grant funding or external funding sources, the
Trust is proud of its proven ability to generate reguired funds and to tackle the legacy of underinvestment
which is a hallmark of the types of schools within this Trust,

During this year major building works commenced at Ranelagh Primary School and at North Beckton
Primary School in conjunction with the Local Authority to improve accessibility and use for children with
SEN and increase capacity at the sites.
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TAPSCOTT LEARNING TRUST
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TRUSTEES REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T AUGUST 2019

The following our bid for CIF funding in December, two of the schools were successful in obtaining
funding as follows and these works will be completed in line with the planned timelines.

s Fire Compliance Works at Ranelagh Primary School - £146,701

» | egionella Works at Kensington Primary School - £178,735

The Trust also funded for each of the schoals to have a full upgrade of the Wi-Fi systems which
has improved connectivity and also made significant savings in its procurement.

Strategic 5 Year Plan

# Kbt of schools i the Trust 10412, this may be segional groups due ba size

# Dutcomes af all icheats that kave bees in the Trust Tor 5 years wil ba Top 10% and
rated as good er edtanding
= Training Hub and Spars Hub will be 4 recopnised parteer in PO and Schaal

Ireprosemend ber Traat and educstional communizies

= Pupd Parbament wil invatve other kecal schnols and be 2 voice to wider partiss

* e will ba mesting our sms and providing s siian in ful,

= Wl achaols are highty regardid in leal remmuniies and are the schosh ol choire, AR
schoots full bo capacicy

+ Full reviswy of wlfeciaeness and systems of goversance and development for across tha
trust and is schools

# Bumber al schools i the Trust 6.8
= Training Hubs will Be stabliked and be delvering schocl imprevamesd Tor the Trus

= ity Hub will be established and warking with 10 other schaols aut side of the Treg
= Cemira laskce of the Tisansial aml Back olfice systeoa will Be in plase

& Central Teerm will grow bo inchude Operatiogs, HR and %chocl Impavement

® Trustees sambecship 1ol

= Ruview and davebogonent of LARS

= Mymber of schoods withis the Toust -4
& Cipale |ke Training Hub

= Creabe thie Spoms Huh

e a r = Small Cendral Team of stall 6.5 with stall i schooks in supperting rokes
# Trusbees b sl will ba 7
= Al LAy matabbshed
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TAPSCOTT LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Llmited by Guarantee)

TRUSTEES REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3137 AUGUST 2019

FInancial position

The Trust held fund balances at 31 August 2019 of £22 331k comprising £21,090k of restricted funds and
£1.241k of unrestricted general funds. Of the restrictsd funds, £27 266k is represerted by tangible fixed
assets and £238k of unspent restricted grants. The Pension reserve which ig considered part of restricted
funds was £6 412k in defici.

Mast of the Trust's income is received from the Education and Skills Funding Agency {ESFA) in the form of
recurrent grants, some of which are restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the E5FA
during the period ended 31 August 2019 and the assaciated expenditure are shown as rastricted funds in
the Statement of Financiat Activities. The Trust also receives grants for Capital items from the ESFA. In
accordance with the Charities Statement of Recummended Practice, "Accounting and Reporting by
Charities' (SORP 2015), such grants are shown in the Stalement of Financial Activilies as restricted income
in the fixed asset fund. The restricted fixed asset fund balahce is reduced by annual depreciation charges
gver the expected useflt life of the assels concerned. During the perind ended 31 August 2019, total
expenditure of £16,679% was mat by recurrent grant funding from the ESFA together with ather incoming
FESOUTCES,

At 31 August 2019 the net book value of fixed assets was £26,813k. Movements in tangible fixed assats
are shown in note 16 ko the financial statements. The aseets were used excluslvely for providing education
and the associated support services to the pupils of the Multi Academy Trust. The Local Government
Pension Schame Fund (LGFS), in which the Academy participates, showed a deficit of

E6412K at M August 2018,

Reserves Policy

The Trustees review the reserve levels of the Multi Academy Trust annually. A sufficient batance must be held in
the current account so that the MAT's financial commitments can always be met without the bank account going
averdrawn. The size af the batance will be determined by & forecast of future need and kept under review.
Investments for a fixed term should not normally exceed one yaar in order to provide flexibility for the failawing
year's plang, unless a clear rationale is provided for exceeding one year to the benefit of the MAT.

For the year entded August 2018, the Trust held unrestricted and restricted general reserves of £1.5m; this
is due %o the Trust taking on North Beckion Primary School in April 2018, the school had a deficit of
£242k. The Trust has been working in parinership with North Beckton Primary school for over 2 years
now and has already made significant improvements in the school, Now the schoot if part of the Trust,
there are further plans to return the schoal to financisl batance within 2 years.

Managemesnt, Repotting and Monitoring

The Trust will manage its own cash deposits and has nominated a list of autherised signataries, two of
which are required ta sign instructions to the deposit taking institution. The Finance Birector wilt monitor
the cash positicn and prospective cash flow schedule and report this to the Board of Trustees at aach
guarterly meeting.

Principle Risks and Uncerialnties

CIna of the main financiat risks to which The Tapscolt Learning Trust is exposad, taking acoeunt of the
mitigations in place, relates to the sk of an income shortfall due to the kikelitood of further governmeant
spending reductions affecting the generat grant, This risk is mitigated by careful management of Trust
funds and a comprehensive budgeting process, which includes scenario planning for different funding
modes.,

Other risks identified by Trustees includs:
« the potential for the scheme of delegation to be ineffective as the Trust expands, mitigated by 2
comprehensive review of the scheme implemented during 2019,
a A further risk arises in relation to the defined benefit pension scheme, due to the fact that there is
a deficit of £6.412k This is partially mitigatad by the government funding the Teachers’ Pension
increase; although it is not certain how long this funding wilk continue.
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TAPSCOTT LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantes)

TRUSTEES REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°T AUGUST 2013

The Trust maintaing a comprehensive Risk Policy and Risk Register, ksting all identified risks and spacifying
cLerent nitigation and additianal mitigation to be put in place. This is regularly reviewsd and updated by the
Aurdit and Risk Committes and is regularly approved by Trustzes,

Flnancial and risk management ohjectives and policies

Risk management

The Trustees have assessed the major risks to which the Trust is exposed, in particular those relating ta

the specific {eaching, provision of facilities and other operationsi areas of the Trust, and its finances,

The Trustees have implemented a number of systems to assess risks that the Trust's schools face, especially in
the operational areas (2.9. in relation fo teaching, health and safety, bullying and schoot trips) and in relation to
the control of finance, The Trust has introduced systems, including operatiohal proceduras and review of internal
financial controls in order to minimise risk,

The Trust aiso has an effeclive Audit and Risk committee, constituted by experenced Trustees who review the
risics and mitigations and meet termly across the school year.

Pians for future periods
The Trust wilt continue striving {o improve the levels of performance of its pupils at afl levels and will cantinue
itz efforts to ensure its pupils achieve to the best of their abifity,

The Trust's schoodls have a good understanding of its strengths and areas for deveiopment based on
ngarous analysis of data and monitoring of teaching and learning, The Trust's schooks also make good e
of external validation to secure its judgament on the quality of provision and subsequent cutcomes. The
Trust plans to expand by adding new Acadermies which subscribe to the Trust's ethos, aims and oblectives
and where the Board consider that mutual benefits will arise.

As of Aprii 2019, North Beckton Primary Schoal (NBPS) joined the Trust, bringing the number of schools to
4 in 2018/19. The financial performance of NBPS for the 5 months from April to August 2019 are included
within the accounts and financial statements in this repont,

Firancial Efflciencies within 201819
Working together acrass the Trust schools has already produced some financial savings in 201819,

The Trust procurement for printing and photocopying in 201 7/18, which continued into 20158/19 widl deliver
projected savings of £85,000 across five years.

tn 201 8¢1% the Trust cartisd ot a review and procuremeant of the financial system and has now maved
from FMS to Access fur Education. This is a cloud based systern which then enables sasier consolidation
and reporting across the Trust and i3 Used across the Trust as from September 2019,

The Trust's medium term pian includes a review of aff contracts {n ensure efficiencies and value for mroney
is achieved. This will be a phased program across the next two years, and if s anticipated that further
savings will be achieved,

in addition to the above, the in-house training provided by the Training Hub has provided 5 cost savings of
an estimated £200,000 across the Trust schaols, which would othenwise have been spent paying for
external training for staff,
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Approved by arder of the Board of Trustees on M [‘ ’L.t «H and signed on behalf of by;
A, Smith Paul Harris
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer
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TARSCOTT LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERANCE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 AUGUST 2019

Scope of Responsibility

Ag Trustees we acknowledge that we have overall respansibility for ensuring that The Tapscolt Learning
Trust has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and atherwise. However such 2 sysfem
is designed to manage rather than eliminate the rigk of failure {0 achisve business objectives, and can
pravide only reasonabie and not absolute assurance against materlal misstatement or loss.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responeibility to the Chief Executive Officer as
accounting officer, far ensuring financial controls conform with the reguirements of both propriety and good
financial management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the
funding agreement betwaen The Tapscott Learning Trust and the Secretary of State for Education, Thay
are slso responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any materiat wasknesses or breakdowns in
internal controd,

Govermance

The infarmation an governance included here stpplements that described in the Trustees' Repart and in
the Statement of Trustees' Responsibifities. Following the resignation of Member, Reza Chaudhury, the
Trust was delighted to appoint a new Trustee, Dr. Marcia Wilson, Associate Dean at the Urivarsily of East
London. The Trust's Annuat General Mesting was held on 190 March 2049 and all Members were in
attendance. The Board of Trustees has held six meetings through the year and attendance during the year
was as follows:

Trustee Meetings atiended Out of a possible
Af. Cameron-Ratchford (Vice Chair) 5 &
A Gl 4 &
P. Harriz (Accounting Officen a8 51
L. Higgins K B
J. Robertin 3 B
K. Shurtay 5 &
A_ Smith {Chair of Trustees) ] &
G. Spenizas 8 6

Sub-Commitiees

The Finance, Operativns & Rescurces Committes is 5 sub-committee of the mamn Board of
Trustees. its purpose is to give detaflad consideration to the best means of fulfilling the delegated
respansibility to ensure sound management of all the Trust's finances, resources inchuding proper
planning, monitoring, probity and business professionalism. The committee will make
recommendations to the board fer consideration and ratification including the stralegic ar
aperationat direction of the Trust as & whole based on the business, drowth, persannel and
performarnce; annal budgets, HR and policies, appraisat performances, central services o the Trust,
asset and pretnises management, information management and data protection, fraining, business
ptans for Training Hub and Sports Hub.

Afterdance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Trustee!/Governor Meetings Attendad Qut of a possible
M. Cameron-Ratchford {Chair)
P. Harris

{. Higgins

K. Shurety

A Smith

R. Gregory

R L]

LR O Ry TR L I
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The Audit and Rlsk Committee is alzo a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees, its purpoge is to
ensure the Trust snd the Local Advisery Boards have adhered to the Scheme of Delegation and have given
detailed consideration to the best means of fulfitiing the Advisory Body's delegated responsibility to ensure
sound management of the Trust's annual accounts, finance policy, bank account information, scheme of
financial detegation, risk managemant, risk register, investments, agreeing appointment of external and
auditors.

Aftendance at maetings in the year was as follows:!

A GHl 2 3
J. Robertin 1 3
J Barkar 2 3
L Miah 3 3
G Spentzos (Chair) 3 3

The Standards and Safeguarding Committee is @ sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees, s
purpose is to ensure the Trust and the Local Advisory Boards have adherad o the Scheme of Delegation
and has given detalled consideration lo the best means of fulfiling the Acvisory Body's delagated
responsibifity to ensure sound management of the Trust's sateguarding, school improvement, disgipline
and grievance, quality of teaching, curriculum, assessment ta include SEF, S0P and Pugil Premium

Attendance ab mestings was as follows -
it Cameron- Ratchford

P Harris

R Sewet

K Shurety (Chair)

— Pl sl Led
0 3 Lo L

The Local Advisary Boards at each of the schools has met 5 times over this financisl year with respansibility
to oversee the running of its individual school in terms of leaming, standards, safety and wellbeing, to hoid
their schook's leadership to accourt for scademic performance, qually of care and provisien, to act as a
critical friznd ta the head teacher of their schoal, to consider budget monitoring information and make
recommendations to the head teacher, to adopt and implement agread policies, and ta represent the views
of the community. Attendance at mastings was as folows:

Curwen Primary Schoal
5. Ahmed {Chair)
4. Barker

F. Gregary

Y, Griffith

P. Harris

5. Mahakeer

¥. Mansfield

L. Migh

J. Spencer
C.Tulky

[E - S T N R Sy
th chch onin N B i Oh O
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Kensington Primary Schooi
M.Cameran-Ratchford {Chair)
L. Cooke

{. Lambaz

E. Levinson

R. Makwana

M. Cmole

J. Patel

N, Sureskumar

G L B g e B LOn
ntnohCh g O €0 on

Term EndedrExpiredMesigrations
C Gamnd 1 4

Ranelagh Prlmary Scheol

K. Bahra

h. Ellig

A, fammeh

5. Lewrenson

J. Malcalm {Chair)
B hdutad

R, Sewell

hote i e feora e
th £n 1N N ¢ L2 Lh

Term EndetVExpirod/Resignations
il Mengeshs
£ Yardanova

- wk
L Pl

North Beckton PHmary Schoal
M. Cameron-Ratchford (Vice-Chair]
L. Chot

N. Girzade

5. Harskamp-Eve

& Helm

1. Jeyakumar

L. Spencer (Chair}

J Withnall

Bop L BB B RO L
R S N N N N

Term Ended/Expired/Resignations
S. Ef Damanawi Praft 3 4

Review of Governance

Mr. A Srith, Chair of Trustees, is & National Leader of Governance and to this end the Trust has been
forfunate ko be able to use this expertise to review all areas of governanca within the Trust. During this year
of aperation, the Trust carried aut:

a seif-review of governance for each Local Advisory Board

a sKills audit for the Board of Trustees

a skills audi ot each Local Advisory Hoard |

Trustses also attendad Local Advisary Board mestings at Kensington Primary, and Cunwen
Primary and North Beckton Primary and noted the effectiveness of each commitiea..
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The risk and cantrof framework

The Trust's system of internal financial contro! is based on a framework of regular manadement
information and admimistrative procedures includitg the segregation of duties and a system of delegation
and sccountability. In particular it includes:

- comprehehsive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial
reports which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trusteas;

« regqular reviews by the fimance and general purposes commitiee of reports which indicate financial
perfarmance againgt the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure
programmes;

» setting targets to measure financial and other performance,

«clearly defined purchasing (ssset purchase or capital investment) guidelines,

» delegation of authority and segregation of duties; and

= ldertification and management of risks,

Review of effectiveness
Az Accounting Officer, the CEOQ has responsibility for reviewing the effectivensss of the system of internal
control.

During the year ih question the review has been informead by:

= the work of the internal auditor,

« the work of the exiernal auditor,

s+ the financial management and governance self-assessment process; and

- the work of the executive managers within the Trust who have responsibility for the development
and malntetance of the internal cantrot framework,

The Accatnting Officer has been advised of the implications of the resuit of their review of the system of
internal controt by the Finance & Resources Committee and Audit & Risk Committees and a plan to
address weaknesses and ensure continuols improvernent of the system is in place.

The purpose of the system of internat controf

The system of internaf cantrot is designad o manage risk fo a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all
risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and okiectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable and not
absgiute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal condral is based on an on-going process
designed to identify and pricritige the risks to the achievement of Group's policies, aims and objectives, to
evaluate the likslihond of those risks being reatised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage
them sfficiently, effectively and economically, In addition, the Senior Operations Team constantly review
the Trust Tracker Document which include Key Performance indicatars and this is shared with Link
Trustees gn @ Tegular basis and then reviewed at Trust Sub Commitice meetings. The system of internal
control has been in place in Grolp for the pericd 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2018 and up to the date
of approval of the annus! report and consolidated financist stalements.

Capzcity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Group is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been imptemented to mitigate thase risks, The
Board of Trustees is of the view that there is a format on-gaing process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the Academy Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 September 2018
to 3t August 2019 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements, This
process is Fegutarly reviewsd by the Board of Trustees.

Page 29



TAPSCOTT LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

GOVERANGCE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 AUGUST 2049

The risk and control framewark

The Trust's system of internal financiat control is based on a framework of regular management information
and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. tn paricular i includes:

= comprehensive budgeting and manitoring systems with an annuat budget and periodic financial
reports which ars reviewed and agreed by the board of Trustees

* regular reviews by the finaince and general purposes commiliee of reports which indicate financial

perfarmance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure

fragrammes

softing targets o measure financial and other perfarmarncs

clearly defined purchasing {(asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines

delegation of authority and segregation of dutias

identification and management of risks

Review of value for money

As Aceounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the Acadermy Frust
delivers goad value in the use of public resourees. The Accaunting Officer underskands that vakue for
money refers to the educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpIEYEr FESOUFCES
received,

The Accounting Officer considers how the Academy Trust's use of its resources has provided good value
for money during each academic year, and reparts o the Board of Trustees where value for monay can
be improved. including the use of benchmarking data where available. The Accounting Officer for the
Academy Tiust has delivered impraved value for money during the year by centralising the following
functions and pracesses,

= ProcUrement

+ Estate and Project Management function 5o that projects and esiate development
{refurbishment and facilities improvement}) and investment are completed and deliverad wia
projects that ensures ecanomies of scale and efficiencies.

+ Financial Management and processing reducing costs within the schasls by ensuring the rofe of
the Business Managers is targeted on operational efficiencies and facused on working across 3
nuntber of schools.

*  The Trust's staffing structures are reviewed anmually to meet the needs of the schog! but also to
ehsure value for money and impact. Sharad resources and expertise further slipport schools in
providing better value for maney.

+  Sehoel improvement is centralised and draws on expertiss from staff with the necessary skills
and abilities across the Trust to share good practice and collegiality. Leaders are a part of the
Trust's corumunity and share resources and support 5o that staff csn continue their professional
devetanment efficient and effectively.

*  The use the Google Platform has ensured a decreased cost in licensing, IT infrastructure costs,
&hd having shared drives has meant staff are more efficient and facused on teaching and
learning.

= The Training Hub has ensured excellent standards in COR for ail staff

We continue io create a more efficient and cost-effective made! for operatianat management wihich wiit
fLture proof the continued expansion of the Trust.

The three original schaots in the Trust are goad or cutstanding with Marth Beckton inpraving rapidly
and children's outcomes are in line or above national expectations in all our schaols,
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Approved by order of the Board of Trustees on I.K:-.I\ 8 L_k Uy and signed on behalf of by
A. Emith Paul Harris
Ch#¥fF of Trustees Accounting Cfficer
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THE TAPSCOTT LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarsntee)

STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As Accounting Officer of The Tapscott Learning Trust | have considered my responsibifty to notify the Academy
Trust Board of Trustees and the Education & Skifis Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropricty
and non-compliancs with terms and condlifions of all funding received by the Academy Trust, under the furding
agreement in place between the Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education, As part of my
consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academics Financial Handbook 2018,

| confirm that | and the Academy Trust Board of Trustess are able to identify any material irreguiar ar impropear
use of ali funds by the Academy Trust, or malerigl non-compiiance with the terms and conditions of funding
under the Academy Trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2018,

P confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identifiad after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of
Trustees and ESFA.

P Harris
Ax:cnuntir?g Officer
Date: < | v by
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THE TAPSCOTT LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES’ RESPUONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENCED 31 AUGUST 2619

The Trustees {who are alse the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company faw} are
responsibie for preparing the Trustess' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academios
Accounts Direction published by the Education & Skills Funding Agency, Uinited Kingdam Accounting Standards
{United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Linder company law
the Trustees must not approve the financiel statements unless they are satisfied that they give a frue and fair
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for that pared. In preparing these financiat staternents, the Trustees are
required to:

. sefect suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- observe the methods and prnciples of the Charities SORP 2016 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2018 to 2018

. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whethar applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followad, subject to any material depatiures
discloged and explained in the financial statements;

] prepare the financia! siatements on the going concetn basis unless it is inappropriate to prasume that the
charitable company will continue in business,

The Trustees ars responsible for keeping adeguate accounting records that are sufficiant to show and explain
the charitable company's fransactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financiat position of
the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006, They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriely and of good financiat
managemant, They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DME have been applied for the
purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's website. Legisiation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial saféments may differ from legistation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order pffhe members of the board of Trustees on and signed on its hehalf by,
SUERTEN

A Bmith
Chair of Trus{ees
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THE TAPSCOTT LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guaranteg)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF THE
TAPSCOTT LEARNING TRUST

Opinien

We have audited the financial staterments of The Tapscott Learning Trust {the 'Acadermy Trust} for the year
ended 31 August 2019 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Statement
of Cash Flows and the related noles, including a summary of significant accounting policizs. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accourting
Standards {Linited Kingdom Generally Accepted Actounting Practice), including Financial Reporing Standard
102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Iretand', the Charities SORE 2015
and the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 isstad by the Education & Siilis Funding Agency.

in our opinion the financiat statements:

L) give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy Trust's affairs as at 31 Algust 2078 and of is
incaming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then
ended:

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accourting
Practice; and

a have been prepared in accordsnce with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP
2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2048 to 2019 issued by the Educstion & Skils Funding

Agency.
Basis for apinion

We conducted our audlt in aceordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK} {ISAs (UK)) and applicabte
faw, Cur responsibiities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Academy Trust in accordance with
the ethicel requirements that are reievant to our audit of the financial statements in tha United Kingdom,
including the Finencial Reporting Councits Ethical Stendard, and we have fulfilled our other ethicat
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We befieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and apgropriate to provide a basis for our ORI,

Concluslons relating to going conrcern

We have nothing to repart in respect of the foliowing matters in relation to which the 15As (LK) reguire us to
report to you whara:

- the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of sccounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
not apprapriate; or

. the Trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that ray
cast significant doubl about the Acadsmy Trust's abillty to cantinue to adopt the going concesn basis of
atcounting for @ period of at least twelve months from the dats when the financiai statements are
authorised for issue,
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THE TAPSCOTT LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF THE
TAPSCOTT LEARNING TRUST (CONTINUED)

Responsibilities of Trustees

As explained more fully in the Trustees' Responsibilities Statement, the Trustees {(who are also the directors of
the Academy Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal contral as the
Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Academy Trust or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' Report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arisa
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
Auditors' Report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Academy Trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy Trust's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' Report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy
Trust and its members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Alyson Howard FCCA DChA CF (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of

MHA Macintyre Hudson

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditors

71 Mew Dover Road

Canterbury

Kent

CT13DZ

Date: 2O Do s/ S
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THE TAPSCOTT LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantes)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF THE
TAPSCOTT LEARNING TRUST {CONTINUED)

Other Information

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our Auditors' Report thareon. Qther information
includes the Reference and Administrafive Details, the Trustees' Raport including the Strategic Repor, the
Govsfnance Statement, the Statsment on  Regularity, Propriety and Compliance and the Trustees'
Responsibilities Statement. Gur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other informalion and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not sxpress any form of assurance conclusion
thereon,

in connection with our audit of the financial stataments, our responsibility is to read the other information ang, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materiaify inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify stich material
incansistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are requited to determine whether thers is a material
migstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the ather information, If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is 2 material misstatemant of this other information, we are
requirsd {0 report that fack,

We have nething o report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Cempanies Act 2006

in our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

v the infarmation glven in the Trustees' Report {incorporating  the Strafegic Report and the Directors'
Report) for the financial year for which the financial statements ase prepared is conzistent with the
financiaf statements and

. the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable lagaf
regilirements.

Matters on which we are reguired to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Academy Trust and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' Report inchiding the Strategic
Report,

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2008
requires us to report fo you if, In our opinian:

- adeguate accounting records have not been Kept, or returns adequate for our audit have rnot been
received from branches not visited by us: or

v the financial staterments are not in agreemant with the accaunting records and returns; or
- ceriain disclosures of Trustees’ remunaration specified by law are not made: or
L] we have nat received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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THE TAPSCOTT LEARNING TRUST
{4 Campany Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO THE
TAPSCOTT LEARNING TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGERCY

in accordance with the terms of our engagemsnt letter dated § October 2018 and further to the requirements of
the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA} as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 1o 2018,
we have carfisd olif Bn engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expendilure disbursed and
income received by The Tapscott Learning Trust during the year 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 have
been applied to the purposes identified by Parkament and the financial transactions conform ko the awthoriies
which govern: them.

This repart is made solely to The Tapscolf Learning Trust and the ESFA in accordgance with the terms of our
engagemant letter. Our work has been undertaken 50 that we might state to The Tapscott Learning Trust and
ESEA those matters we are reguired to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do net accept or assums responsibility to anyone other than The Tapscott Laarhing Trust and ESFEA,
for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective respensibitities of The Tapscott Learning Trast's Accouating Officer and the
Reporting Accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the regquirements of The Tapscott Learming Trust's funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 28 August 2017 and the Academies Financial
Handoook, extant from 1 September 2018, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is
applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the aulhaorities which
govern therm.

Our responsibilifies for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's athical
guidance and are to chiain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letier and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Dirgction 2013 to 2019, We repait to you whether anything has come
to qur attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
incomme received during the year 1 Seplember 2048 to 31 August 2018 have not been applied o purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not canform to the aulhorities which govern them.
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THE TAPSCOTT LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO THE
TAPSCOTT LEARNING TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED)

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by
ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter,

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficiant appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity,

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement, Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Academy Trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

. reviewing the Minutes of the meetings of the Governing Body and other evidence made available to us,
relevant to our consideration of regularity;
. a review of the objectives and activities of the Academy, with reference to the income streams and other

information available to us as auditors of the Academy:

testing of a sample of payroll payments to staff:

testing of a sample of payments to suppliers and other third parties:

consideration of governance issues; and

evaluating the internal control procedures and reporting lines, testing as appropriate and making
appropriate enguiries of the Accounting Officer.

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the
expenditure dishursed and income received during the year 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them.

Reporting Accountant

MHA Maclntyre Hudson
71 New Dover Road
Canterbury

Kent

CT13D2

Date: Qo O corboe/ DU 3
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THE TAPSCOTYT LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee}

STATEMENT DF FINANGCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 201%

Note

{ncome from:

Donationg and capital
granis: 4

Transfars an
corvarsion

Tther donations and
capital granks

Charitable activities 5
Other trading activities £
investments 7
Other income

Tatal Incpme
Expeanditure on:
Charitahle activities g

L]

Total expenditure

Net movement in
funds hefore other
recognised
galnsi{losses)

Other recognised
gainsf{losses):

Actuarial (losses)/gains
on defined benefit
pension schemes 2V

MNet movement in
funds

Raconciliation of
funds:

Total funds brought
forward

Met movemeant in funds .

Total funds carried
forward

Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds general funds funds funds funds
2019 2019 2019 2019 2018
£ E E £ E
{226,830} {1,360,000) B,917,952 7,331,122 16,803,275
6,400 - 464,147 470,647 148,507
86,677 15,109,274 - 15,206,951 13,006,103
439637 - 438,687 89 097
53 - 53 a0s
76,163 - - 76,153 35,259
362,140 13,749,274 9,382,099 23,523,513 30,094 047
65,048 16,319,936 493,098 46,878,982 13,360,764
65,048 16,318,928 483,995 16,874,982 13,360,784
327,092 {2,570,662) 8,888,101 6,644,531 16,733,283
“ {1,474,G:00) - {1,474,000) 427 000
327,092 (4,044,662} 8,888,101 5,170,531 17,160,283

913,439 (2,131,379 18,373,223 17,160,283 -
327,092 {4,044,662) 8,888,101 5170,631 17,160,283
1,240,531 (6.176,041y 27,265,324 22,330,814 17,180,283

———r | m— oo AT S S
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THE TAPSCOTT LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantaa}

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES {INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
(CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

The Statement of Financiai Activities includes all gains and losses racognised in the year,

The notes on pages 36 to 66 form part of these financial statements.
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THE TAPSCOTT LEARKING TRUST

{A Company Limlted by Guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 10673504

2018 2018
Note E £
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 18 26,813,019 18,208 057
26,513,019 18 248 057
Currenf assets
Debtors 17 825,061 491,221
Cash at bank and in hand 2,701,698 2,401,373
3,526,659 2,h92 594
Creditors: amounle falling due within one
year 18 (1,596,864} {082, 368)
Net current asseis 1,928,795 1610226
. Total assets less current liablities 28,742 814 14,808 2837
| — R
E Net assets excluding pension lablity 28,742,614 19,908,283
j Defined benefit pension scheme fiability 27 (6,412,000) (2, 748,000)
' Total net assets 22,350,814 17,180,263
f Funds of the Academy Trust
Resirictad funds:
Restricted fixed assat funds 18 27,266,324 18,378,223
Restricted gereral funds 19 235 859 818 821
Restricted general funds - penslon resetve 18 {6,412,0¢0) (2,748 000)
Total restricted funds 19 21,080,283 15,246 844
Unrestricted funds 19 1,240,531 813,438
Tatat funds 22,330,814 17,160,283

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2019

The financial statements on pages 31 to 86 were approved by (he Trustees, and autharised for issue on and are

signad ot their behalf, by

t ='.‘..'s|. [y 18 { Ly
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THE TAPSCOTT LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

BALANCE SHEET {CONTINUED)
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2019

AS
Chair of Trustees

The notes on pages 36 to 66 form part of these financial statements.
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THE TAPSCOTT LEARMNING TRUSY
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 AUGUST 2018

Note
Cash flows from aperating aciivities
et cash provided by operating aclivities 21
Cash flows from investing activities 23
Cash flows from finrancing activities 22
Cheanyge in cash and cash equivaients in the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equlvalents at the end of the year 24

The notes on pages 36 to 66 form part of these financiat statements

2049 2018

£ £

453,863 1,136,388

373,192 59,008

(226,830) 905,387

800,225 2,101,373
2,101,373 -

2,701,598

2.101,373
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THE TAPSCOTT LEARKING TRUST
(A Company Limited by Guarantea}

NOTES TO THE FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ALGUST 2019

1. General information

The Tapscolt Learning Trust is a company limited by guarantee, incorporated in England and Walazs. The
address of the registered office and principal place of operation are detailed on page t. The nature of the
Trust's operations and principal activity are delailed in the Trustees’ Report.

2, Accounting policles

2.1

2.2

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgemeants and key sources of estimation uncertsinty, is set out befow,

Basis of preparatlon of financial statements

The financia! statements of the Academy Trust, whish s a2 public benefit entity under FRE 102, have
been prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Repaorting
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of reland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reparting by
Charities. Statement of Recommeanded Practice applicable to charitios prepanng their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the LK and Repubfic of refand (FRS
102} {Charities SORP (FRS 102)}, the Academies Accounts Direction 2848 to 2019 issued by ESFA,
the Charifies Act 2011 and the Campanias Act 2006

The Tapscott Learning Trust meets the definition of & public benefit entity under FRS 102, The
financial statements are presented in stering which is the functional currency of the Trust and are
reunded fo the nearest one pound.

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going coneern is sppropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncartainties related to cvents or conditiong that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the: Academy Trust to continue as a going concer. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of
& perivd of at least ong year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financizl statements and
have conciuged that the Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable fufure and thers are no material uncertainties abaut the Academy Trust's ability to
continue as & going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statemeants.
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THE TAPSCOTTY LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Limited hy Guarantee]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 201%

2,

Accounting potlcies {continued)

.3

2.4

jncome

Al incorning resources sre recognised when the Academy Trust has entitlement to the funds, the
receipt is probable and the amount can be measured refiably.

Grants

Granis are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on & receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the penad is shawn in the relevant
funds on the Balance Sheet Where income is recelved in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred
and inchided in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where
entitlement occurs before income s receivad, the income is ocrued.

General Annuat Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activitias in the year for which
it is receivable and any abstement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as
a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitliement to the grant. LInspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance Sheet in the rastricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recoghised when thers is entitlernent and are not deferred over the life of the asset oh
which they are expended.

Sponsorshlp income

Sponsorship income provided to the Academy Trust which amounts to a dohation is recagrised in the
Statement of Finarcial Activities in the year in which it is receivable (whera there are no performance-
related conditions) whare receipt is probable and & can be measured reliably.

Donaticns

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis {where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Transfer on convarslon

YWhare gssets and habifitiss are received by the Academy Trust on conversion to an academy, the
transfarred assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the Balance Sheet at the point when
the risks and rewards of ownership pass to the Academy Trust. An egqual smount of income is
recognised as a ransfer on conversion within ‘Income from Donations and Capital Granis' to the net
assets received.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligalion to transfer sconomic benefit
to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be reguired in settlerment and
the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classifisd by activity. The costs
of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved in undertaking sach activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allecated directly
to that activily. Shared costs which contribute to mere than one activity and support costs which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned betwesn those activities oh a basis consistent with
the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of fime spent, and depreciation
charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.
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THE TAPSCOTT LEARNING TRUST
(A Company LImited by Guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 219

A Accounting policies {continuad)

2.4

2.5

2.8

2.7

Expenditure (continued)

Charltahle activities

These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educational operations, including support costs and
casts refating to the governance of the Academy Trust apportioned to chatitable activities,

All respurees sxpended ars inclusive of irrecoverable VAT
Interest receivakla

tnterest on furds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be measured
feliably by the Academy Trust, this is normally upon notificstion of the interest paid or payatie by the
institution with whom the funds are deposited.

Taxation

The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 8 of the Finance
Act 2010 and therefore it meets the defirition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax
PUIQOSES.

Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in rezpect of income or capital
gains received within categories cavered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or
Section 258 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1982, 1o the extent that such income or Q&S
are 2pplied exclusively fo charitable purposes.

Tangible fixed agsets

Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depraciztion and any provisfon for impsirment.

Where tangible ficed assets have been acquired with the gid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and
depreciated over theit expected usefut sconomic Hife. Where there are specific conditions attached io
the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted
fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet,
Depreciation on the refevant assels is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the
Staternent of Financial Activities. Whers tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted
funds, a transfer is rmade to the restricted fived assat fund.
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THE TAPSCOTT LEARNING TRUST
{A Company Limlted by Guarantee)

KOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ERDED 31 AUGUST 2015

2.

Accounting policies (continued)

2.7

2.8

1.9

Tangible flxed assets [continued)

Depreciation is provided on alt tangible fixed assels other than freshold land and assets under
construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of these assets, less their aestimated residual
valua, over their expected useful lives on the following bages:

teasehold land and buildings - 2% straight line

Furniture and equipment - 10-18% straight line
Comptiter equipment - 33% stralight fine
Maotor vehicles - 20% straight line

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicale
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable, Shortfalls between the carrylng
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activitias.

Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the setflement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

Lash at bank and in kand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and shortderm highly liguid investments with a short maturty
of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opsning of the deposit or similar account.

2.10Llablties

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance Sheet dale as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in ssttiemant, and the amount
of the settl=ment can be estimated refiably. Liabilltiss are recognised at the amount that the Academy
Trust articipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount # has received as advanced payments for
the goods or services it must provids.

2.11 Figanclal Instruments

The Academy Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial
aszets and financial kabilties of the Academy Trust and their measurement bases are as follows:

Einancial assefs - tragde and other debtors are basic financiat instruments and are debt instrurnents
measured at amorised tost as detslied in note 17, Prepayments are not financial instruments. Cash
at bank is clagsified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face valus,

Einancial liabiities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amorized cost a5 detailed in note 18, Taxation and social security are not included in
the financiad instruments disclosure definilion. Deferred income is not deemed to ba a financial
liabllity, a3 the cash seftiement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services
rather than cash or another financial instrument.
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THE TAPSCOTY LEARNING TRUST
(A Company Liméted by Guarantesg)

NOTES 7O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 AUGUST 2019

2, Accounting policles (continued)

2.12 Operating leases

Fentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities on g straight
{ine basis aver the lease term.

2.13 Pensions

The Academy Trust operates a defined contdbution pension scheme and the pension charge
represents the amounts payable by the Academy Trust to the fund in respect of the year.

Retirement berefits to employees of the Acatdemy Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension
Scheme {"TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme {"LGPS"}. Thase are defined benefit
schames.

The TPS is an unfinded scheme and contributions are calcutated so as o spread the cost of
pensions over employess' working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way thal the pension cost
is & substantially level percentage of currert and future pensionable payrok. The cortributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrenniat valustions using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded mutti-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, tha TPS is treated as a defined contribulion scheme for
acceunting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relats.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assats are held ssparately from thase of the
Academy Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair
value and liabilities are measurad on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high guality corporate bond of
equivatent term and curmency to the liabiiities, The actuarial valuations sre obtained at least trigminially
and are Updated at each Balance Sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the
current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements ang
curtaifments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comptises the
inferest cost on the defined benefit sbligation and interest incomes on the scheme assats, calcutated
by mulliplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discaunt the benefit obligations. The difference hetweert the interest income on the scheme aszets
and the actuat return on the scheme assets is recogrised in other recognised gains and insses.

Actuarial gaing and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gaing and losses.
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2,

Accounting pelicies {continued)

214 Conversicn to an academy trust

The conversion from a state maintained school fo an Academy Trust invelved the transfer of
ldentifiable assets and llabifities and the operation of the school for ENIL consideration. The
substance of the transfer is that of a gift and it has been accounted for on that basis as set out below,

The assels and ligbilities transferred on conversion from Morth Beckion Primary School o the
Academy Trust have been vatued at their fair value. The fair value has been derived based on that of
equivalent items. The amounts have been recognised under the appropriste Balance Sheet
categorias, with a corresponding amount recognised in Incoma from Donatlons and Capital Grants in
the Staterment of Financial Activibes and analysed under unrestricted funds, restricted general funds
and restricted fixed asset funds.

Further details of the transaction are set out in note 25,

2.45 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds reprasent thosea resolrces which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitabfe chjects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fived asset funds are resources which are to be applied o specific capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or crested is held for a specific purpese.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funderidonar and inglude grants from the Departmeant for Education Group.

Investment income, gains and Iosses are allocated to the appropriate fund.
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3 Critlcal accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are confinuafly evaluated and are based on historical experience and ather
factars, including expectations of future events that are believed to be ressonabie under the
ciremstances.,

Critical accounting estimates angd assumptions:

The Academy Trust trust makes estimates angd assumplions concering the future. The resulting
accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom eguat the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below,

The present value of the Local Government Pehsion Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of faclors that are delermined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assimptions used i determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount sate. Any
changes in thess assumptions, which are disclosed in note 27, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension Hability. Furthermore a rolf forward approach which projects resulis from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions fiability ot 34
August 2019, Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension fatiily.

The vatuation of the building transferred into the Trust for North Beckion school was undertaken by a
professional valuer and deemed to be at fair valus.
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4,

Itcame frem donations and capltal grants

Transfers on conversion

Dongtions
Gapitat grants

Subtotal

Tatal 2018

Transfers on conversion

Subiotal

Danations
Capital grants

Subiotal

Total 20148

Restricted  Hestricted
Unrestricted generat  fixed asset Tofial
funds funds funds funds
2015 2019 2019 2014
£ £ £ £
(226,830} (1,360,000) B.B17.8582 7,331,122
£ 400 - - £.400
. - 464,147 464,147
8400 - 454 147 470,547
(220430 (13600000 9382089 7,801,669
Restricled Restricted
Linrestricted general  fixed asset Total
funds funds funds furds
2018 218 2048 218
£ £ £ £
ad5 387 (2,708,0007 18605888 18803275
905387  [2,708,000) 18805888 16803275
4 400 - - 4 400
- 144 107 144 107
d A0D - 144 107 148 507
o007 {27080000  18,740005 16,551,782
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5.

Charitable activitles - Funding for the Academy Trust's educational operations

DFEfESFA grants

General Annisal Grant (GAG)
Pupil Premium

Other DIE f ESFA revenle grants

Dther gavernment grants
Logat Authority revenus grants

Othar funding
Other educational income

Totai 2018

DFE/ESFA grants

General Annual Grant {GAG}
Pupil Premium

Other DIE f E5FA revenue grants

Other government grants
Local Authority revenue grants

Other funding
Ciher educational income

Total 2018

Restricted
Unrastricted nenefal Total
funds funds funds
20159 2019 2015
£ £ E
- 10,713,530 19,743,530
- 856,513 856,913
- 567084 57,084
12137527 12137527
- 2,788,137 2,788,137
2,788,137 2,788,737
g8 677 183,610 280,287
BESYT 15108274 15,205,961
Restricted
Unrestricted genera Total
funds furnds funds
2018 2018 2018
E E £
9,36p 292 3,369 202
887240 887 240
441 BG1 441 B&1
10,688,303 10,598,393
- 2,080 938 2,089,938
- 2089938 2,080 838
73,284 144 508 217,772
F31284 12032839 13,006,103

There were no unfutified conditions or cther contingencies altached to the government grants above.
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5. Income from other trading activities
Unrestricted Fotaj Total
funds funds funds
20%9 2018 2018
£ E £
Catering income 4 8495 4,895 5,603
income from anciliary trading activiies - - 160
Other trading activities 434,792 434,792 g4 334
Total 2019 439,887 439,687 04 997
In 2018, =il income from other trading activities was allocated {o Unrestricted funds.
T Investment income
Unrestricted Total Total
funds furds fings
2018 20148 2018
E £ E
Bank interest receivabie 323 B3 B0&

2018, all income from investments was allocated to Unrestricted funds.
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8. Total axpenditure
Premises
Staff costs costs  Other costs Totat
2019 2018 2019 2019
E £ £ £
Educaticnal oparations:
Diirect costs 11,145,356 - 310,518 11,455,874
Support costs 1,851,987 934,693 2,636 428 5,423,108
Total 2019 12,997,243 934,693 2B48 5946 16,875982
Premises
Staff Costs costs Other Totat
2018 2018 2018 2018
£ £ E £
Educational eperations:
Direct costs 8,076 452 - 299 907 9,376 358
Support costs 1,374,915 718113 1,891 477 3,584 405
Totaf 2018 10,451,367 TEH013 2,101,384 13,360,764
Iy 2018, of the tolal expenditure of £13,380 784, £205 774 was fram unrestricted funds, £12 771 244 was
from restricted general funds and £383,746 was from restricted fixed asset funds.
9. Analysis of expenditure by charitabila activities
Activities
undertaken Support Total
directly costs funds
2019 2019 26149
£ £ £
Educaticnal operatichs 11,455 874 S423108 16,873,982
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9.

10.

Anglysis of expendlture by charifable activities (continued)

Educational operations

Analysis of support casts

Dsfirtad beraft pension scheme finance cost
Staft costs

Depreciation

Technoiogy costs

Premizes costs

Support staff costs

Governance Cosis

Tofal 2018

Gavernance costs

Auditors' remuneration - Audif of the financial statements
Auditors' remunaration - Other sarvices
Professional services

Artivities

undertaken Support Total
directly costs funds
2018 2018 2018
E £ £
9,376,358 3.984405 13,380 764
Educational Total Total
operations funds funds
2019 20149 2018
£ £ £
82,000 82,000 86,000
1,769,987 1,769,987 1,208,815
483 858 493,958 383,746

8,435 8,435 -
834,683 934,693 718M3
2,081,382 2,081,282 1,488 236
52,813 52,613 19,445
5423,108 5,423,108 3,984 403
2019 2018
E £
10,250 7.050
7,575 1,950
34,786 0.545
52,613 19,445
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11. HMet incomef{iexpanditure}

Mat income/{expenditure) for the year includas:

2018 2018
£ £
Operating lease rentals 17,454 16,808
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 493,998 383,745
Aurditors' remunaration - Audit of the financial statements 10,250 7.950
Auditors’ reminergtion - Other services T.575 1,850
12. Staff costs
4. Staff costs
Staff costs during the year were as follows:
2018 2018
E E
Wages and salaries 9,214,754 ¥ 481,879
Social security costs 884,920 7A2 879
Pension costs 2,120,424 1,519,015

12,223,958 8713573

Agency staff cosks 691,345 671,794
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 82,000 $6,000

12,997,343 10,451 367

For the year ending 31 August 2019, costs relating to the Apprenticeship Levy have been disclosed within
social security costs, rather than separately. The prior year camparative has been reclassified to refiect
this change in disclosure.
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12. Staff costs {continued)
b. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the year was as folows:

2019 2018

No, M.

Teachers 107 a¥
Adgministration and support 220 193
Management 28 25

365 315

¢. Highar pald staff

The number of employees whose employes benefits {excluding employer pension costs) exceedsd

£60.000 was:
2019 2018
Na. Mo,
In the band E6G,001 - £70,000 B 4

In the band ET0,001 - £80,000 1
In the band E&0 001 - £30,000 1
In the band £80 001 - E1¢0,000 L -
in the band 130,001 - £140,000 E:

The above employees participated in both the Teachers' Pension Scheme and the Local Governmaent
Pension Schame. During the year ended 31 August 2018, smployer pension contributions for these staff
members amounted fo £119 238 (2018 - £84 282}

4. Key managemeni personnei

The Key Management Personngl of the Trust comprise the Trustees and the Senior Management Team
g5 listed on page 1. The totzl amourt of employes benefits {including employer national insutrance
contributions and employer pension contributions) received by Key Management Fersonnet for their
services o the Trust was £363 441 (2018 - £355,807).
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13. Central services

The Academy Trust has provided the following central services o its academies during the year:

School Improvement Services
Finance and Accounting

Governance Structure and Strategies
Teaching and Learning

Infernal Audit

Remote IT Support

Legal and HR Support

Sports training and activities

Risk Management

Staff wellbeing

Continuing Professional Development
Wikt upgrade

tew Finance systemn procurement

The Academy Trust charges for these services on the following basis:
A flat 4% (2048 - 3%} of GAG funding.

The actual amourts charged during the year were as follows:

2019 2018

E £

Curwan Primary Schoo 4195 473 134 668

Kensington Primary School 141,336 a0.857

Ranelagh Primary School B9, 762 85,555
Morth Beckion Frimary Schogl 45,455 .

Total 440,026 281,078

14,  Frustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
with the Academy Trust The principal and other staff Trustees only receive remunaration in respect of
services they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of
employment. The value of Trustees' remuneration and other borefits was as follows:

2019 2018

E £

P. Harris, Principat and Accounting Qfficer Remuneration 155,0G0 - 130,000 -
140,000 135,000

Pension contributions paid 20,000 - 20,000 -

25,000 25,000

During the year ended 31 August 2018, no Trustee expenses have been incumred (2018 - £NIL).
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15.

i6.

T restess’ and Officers' insurance

The Academy Trust has opted into the Department of Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA}, an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover iosses that arise. This scheme protects
Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent asts, errors or omissions acourring whilst on
academy business, and provides cover up fo £10,000,000. }# is not possible o quanlify the Trustees and
officers indemnity elsment from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.

Tangible fixed asgots

Leasehaold Furniture
land anrd Corpputar and Mator
bufldings  equipment efulpment vehicles Total
E £ £ E £

Cost or valuation
At 1 September 2018 18,637,000 74,055 73,744 - 18,681,803
Additices - 40,982 60,026 - 91,304
Transfers on conversion 8,884,069 500 500 22,083 8,917,952
At 31 August 2018 27,434,869 112,537 124,274 22,083 27,690,763
Cepraciation
At 1 September 2018 370,740 8,426 3,580 . 383,746
Charge for the year 444,864 35,200 11,994 1,840 493,994
Al 31 August 2019 815,604 44,726 18,574 1,840 877,744
Net book value
At 31 August 2018 28,616,265 67,811 408,700 20,243  26813,019

At 31 August 2018 18,166,260 g1,628 70,168 - 18,298,057

The existing leaschold properly was professionally valued on 7 October 2018 by Resolution Propery
Surveyors, a RICS Registered Valuer using the Depreciated Replacement Cost method. The Trustess
consider that the valuation remains appropriate for the purposes of these financiad statements.

The inherited lessehold property was professionally valued on 27 Sepiember 2018 by the same
survayors using the same methods. The Trustees make similar consideration regarding the
appropristeness of this valuation,

The freehold tand is owned by Mewham London Borough Council. The Trust hold 125 year leasehalds at
peppercarn rents from 1 Aprit 2018 {North Beckton Primary School} and 1 October 2017 {rest of the
Trust),
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17,  Delrtors

Due within ong year
Other debtors
Prepayments and accrued income

18. Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors
Cither creditors
Accruals and deferred income

Deferrec¢ income

Defarred income at 1 September 2018
Resources deferred during the year
Amounts refeased from previous periods

2019 2018

£ £

4B8,354 374,155

336,707 117,066

826,061 491,221

2619 2018

£ £

12,220 73,635

819,645 371,608

764,399 537 124

1,696,864 982,368

2019 2018

E £
827,224 -

593,976 527224

(527,224)
593,978 527 224

Al the balance sheet date the Trust was holding funds received in advance of

Furding from the ESFA for Early Years for the 2015-20 academic year

a- o 4 %

Funding from the ESFA for Universal Free School Meals for the 2019-20 academic year
Funding from the ESFA for Special Educational Needs for the 2018-20 acadamic year

Capital, growth and water under the bridges income for the 2019-20 asademic year.

Page 52



THE TAPSCOTT LEARNING TRUST
(A Comprany Limited by Guaraniee)

NGTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED M AUGUST 2019

1. Statement of funds

Balance at 1 Balance at
Saptember Transfers Gains/ 21 August
2018 Income Expenditure infout {Losses) 2019
£ E £ £ £ E
Linresirictad
funds
General funds 813,438 392,140 [65,048) - - 1,240,531
Restricted
genetai funds
General Annual
Grant {GAG) 616,621 10,713,630 (11,004,192) - 235,959
Pupil Premium “ 866,913 (85&,913) - - -
Other DFE ¢
ESFA reverile
grants - 567,084 {567,084) - - -
Local Authority
revenUe grants - 2788137 {2,74B137) - -
Breakfast and
afterschng|
clubs - 181,810 (181,810) - -
Cther
educational
mcoma - 1.80G [1,800) - .
Pensfon regerve  {2,748,000)  {1,360,000) {330,000k (1.474,000) (6,412,000}
{2,431,378) 13,749,274 (16,315,536) (1.474,600] (&,176.041)
Restrictad flxed
asset funds
NBY of fixed
assals 18,258,057 8,917,952 [493,99B) 91,008 26,812,010
DfE FESFA
capital grants 80,166 464,147 - (91,008) - 453,305
16,375,223 9,352,09% {493,998} - 27,766,324
Total Restricted
funds 16,246,844 23,131,373 (16,813,934) - (1,474,000 21,080,283
{1,474,000)

Total funds 17,160,283 23,623,613 [16,478,2832) -

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

22,330,814
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19.

Statement of funds {continued)

The Unrestricted general fund represents the Trust's unrestricted activities,

The General Annual Grant {GAG) represents the core funding for the educationa! activities of the Trust via
the Educslion and Skitls Funding Agency {ESFA) by the Department for Education (DfE}. The GAG fung
has been established because the GAG must be uzed for the normal running costs of the Trust,

The Pupil Premium fund has been estabiished to recognise the restricted funding from the Education and
Skills Funding Agency to raise the attainment of dissdvantaged pupils end close the gap between tham
and their peers.

The Other DfE / ESFA revenue grants fund has been created fo recognise the restrictad funding received
from the DfE/ESFA which fall outside the scope of core funding.

The Local Authorily revenue grants fund has baen set up fo recognise the income received from Newharn
London Borough Councit as a contribution towards the cost of the Trust's revenue expanditure. Funding
received for Speciat Educational Newds is also recognised within Local Authorily Geants. These funds ars
ta assist with the costs incurred providing disadvantaged students with the additional educationsl
resources that they require,

The Breakfast and afterschoot ciubs fund has been set up to recognise income and coresponding
expendiure arising from the Trust's extra-curricular ¢lubs.

The Other educational income fund has been established to recogrise all other restricted income and
expenditure which falis oulside the scope of the Trusts core funding.

The Pension reserve has been created fo separately identify the pension deficit inherited from the Local
Authority upan conversion to Academy status, and through which &l the pension schame movements are
recognised,

The NBV of fixed assets fund has been set up {o recognise the tangible assets held by the Trust and is
equivalent lo the net book value of tangible fixed assets. Depracigtion of tangibie fixad sssets is allocated
to this fund,

The DIE/ESFA capitel grants fund has been created to recognise capital grants received for the purpose
of the acquisition of tangible fixed assets. As tangible fixed assets are purchased, & transfer is made to
the NBV of fixed asset funds. Transfers totalling £91,008 were made in the year for this purpose.

Under the funding agresmaent with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was nat subject o a mit on
the amaount of GAG i could carry forward at 31 August 2019,
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14.

Statement of funds {continued)

Total funds anatysis by academy

Fund halances at 21 August 20195 wars aflocated as follows:

2019 2018

£ £

Curwen Prirmary School 862,370 T4Y 492

Kensingion Primarny Schoaol 211,262 182,814

Ranelagh Primary School 644,822 549 754
Marth Beckton Primary Schoot {241,964} -

Totas before fixed asset funds and pension resene 1.475,490 1,630,060

Brestricted fixed asset fund 27,266,324  18.378,223

Fersion resshve (6,412,000} (2,748,000

Total 22,330,214 17,180,283

The foltowing academy is carrying a net defickt on its portion af the funds as folows:

Deficit
£

Morth Beckton Primary Schoal 241,984

Morth Beckion Primary school joined the Trust on 1st Apsil 2014, The school had a defict of £227k which
is now part of the Trust consolidated figures. The Trust has been working in parinership with Morth
Beckton primary school and has a plan to bring the schoel to a balancs outturn in 2 years.

The Academy Trust is taking the following action to return the acadery to surpius;

The plan includes close and reguiar monitoring of the budget and accounts, restricted spending plan, and
ather educaticnal measuras. The schaol wilt also benefit from pfiiciencies across cantracts as the Trust

plan to re-procurement majar contracts.
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18. Statement of funds jcontinued)

Total cost analysis by academy

Expendifure incurrad by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teachlng
andg
educational Dther Other costs
suppart support Educationali  exclutding Total
staff cosfs  staff costs supplies deprectation 2019
£ £ £ £ £
Cunwsn Primary Schoot 4 885,643 1,330,365 181,278 1,394 227 7,791,513
Kermsington Primary School 2782187 278,833 42 465 ¥79,336 3,880,801
Ranelagh Primairy Schooi 2,118,157 244 78R8 ol 761 651,577 3,063,264
Merth Beckion Primary Schooi 1,368 408 - 35,014 251,083 1,649,406
Academy Trust 11,145,356 T,801,887 30518 3,077,723 16,384,984
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19,

Statement of funds {continued)

Gomparstive information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Balance at
Transfars (3ains/ 31 August
lncome  Expenditura infout {Lasses) 2018
£ £ £ E £
Unrestricted funds
General funds 1,118.213 (205,774) - - 913 432
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 360,202 (8 740,687) {11,874) G616 821
Pupil Premium BA7 240 [BB7 240} - -
Other DfE { ESFA revenus
grants 441 861 {441 881) - - -
Local Authority revenue grants 2,088,638 (2080938 - -
Breakfast and afterschaol clubs 132,567 [132.,557) - -
Fension resane {2, 708,400 (467.000) - 427 000 (2748000
10,212,888 {12,759 203) {11,974} 427000 (2,131,378)
Restricted flxed asset funds
MEV of fined assels 18,605,888 [383,746) 75815 18,288 057
3fE f ESFA capital grants t44,107 - {83,841} 80,166
18,749,995 {383 746) 11,874 - 18,378 223
Tatal Restricted funds 26 962,883  {13,143,039) 427000 16,245 B44
Total funds 30,082,006 (13,348 813) - 427000 17 160,283

—r———i e —rrrTTr— e — Tl — m—rT—— s
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20.

Analysis of net assets between funds

Analysis of net assats between funds - current year

Restricted  Restricted
Uinrestricted general fixed assat Total
funds funds funds funds
2079 2019 20149 2019
£ F £ £
Tangible fixed assets - - 268132018 26,813,019
Current agsats 2,837,385 235,058 453,305 3,526,659
Creditors due within one year (1,586 864} - {1,596,B64)
Refined benefit pension scheme liabifity - {6,412,000) (6,412,000)
Tatal 1240531 (B 1VB 041} 27,268,324  22.330,814
Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year
Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted general  fixed asset Tt
furds funds funds funds
2018 2018 2013 2018
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets - 18,298,067 18,208,057
Current assets 574,381 1,938 047 80,166 2,592 5494
Creditors due within one year 339,058 (1,321,428} - {982 368)
Pefined benefit pension scheme liakility (2, 748.000) - (2,748 000}
Total 813,438 (2131279 18374223 17,160,283
— — ] e r——
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21.

22,

23,

Reconciliation of net incame to net cash flow from operating activiiles

Net income for the vear {as per Staternsnt of Financial Activities)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation charges

nvestment income

(Increaselfdecreass in debiors

Increasel/{decraass) in craditors

Capital grants from DIE and other capital income

Defined banefit pansion scheme obligation inherited

Defined benefit pension schems cost fess contributions payable
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost

Met agsets transferred on conversion

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash fiows from financlng activities

{ash and net sesels transferred on conversion to an Academy Trust

Nat cash {used inWprovided by financing actlvities

Cash flows from investing activities

Investment income
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Capital grants from DfE { ESFA

Net cash provided by investing activities

2049 2018
£ £
6,644,531 454 33283
403,998 381 746
(53) (806
{333,840) (491,221}
614,496 9BZ 368
(464,147} {144,107}
1,360,000 2,708,000
748,000 401,000
B2,000 66,000
{8,691,122) (19,511,275}
453,863 1,126,888
2049 2018

£ £
{226,830 ans 387
(226,830} 905,387
2012 2018

£ £

53 906
{94,008) (75.915)
464,147 144,107
373,182 69 088

————————
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24.  Analysis of cash and cash eguivalents

Cash in hang

Total cash and cash equivalents

25. Conversion to an Academy Trust

2018 2018

E £

2,701,598 2,101,373
2,701,598 2104,373
——— -] —————————————————

On 1 April 2018 North Beckion Primary Schoot converted to academy trust status under the Academies
Act 2018 and all the sperations and assets and Habilities were transferred to The Tapscoit Leaming Trust

from Mewham London Berough Councll for ENIL consideration.

Thre transfer has been accounted for as a combinalion that is in substance a gift. The assets and
liabiliies transferred were valued at their fair value and recognised in the Balance Sheet under tha
appropriale heading with a cormesponding net amount recognised as a nat gain in the Statement of
Financiaf Aclivities as thcome from Donations and Capital Grants - harsfer from local authority on

CONversion,

The following tabie sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and fiabilities transferred and an
analysis of their recogrition in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Restricted
tnrestricted  Restricted  fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
E £ £ £
Tangible fixed assots
Leasehold land and buitdings - - £ Bo4 869 8,804 B6S
Other tangikle fixed assels - - 23,083 23,083
Curremnt asseis
Cash at bank and in hand 9874 - - 3,874
Dher current asssls 24 847 - - 24947
Currant lFabilities
Amounts owed to Newham London
Borough Coungil {255 075) - - (256,075)
Budget deficit on Local Authority funds {6,678} - - (8,576}
Non-current Labilitles
Pension scheme defigit - (1,380,000 - {1,360,000)
Net (lizbilities)/assets {226,830y {1,360 000  2.0917.052

1,331,122
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28,

27,

Capital commitments

2019 2018
£ £
Contracted for but not provided in these finangig! statements
Acquisition of tangibla fixed assets 325,436 -

At the Batance Sheef date the Trust had committed to cagital improvements refating to fire compliancea
work and Legionala warks, to be funded by Condition Improvement Fund grant monies.

Fanston commitments

The Academy Trost's employees befong to two principal pension schemes. the Teachers' Pension
Schemme for Fnglarnd and Wales (TPS) for academic and refated staff: and the Local Government Pensian
Scheme (LEPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Newham Landon Berough Gouncit Bath are
multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the pericd ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31
Mareh 2{HE.

Contributions amounting to £76,416 wers payable o the schemes at 31 August 2018 {2018 - £71,135)
and are incleded within creditors,

Teachers' Pension Scheme

Intradoction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS or scharme) i 2 statutory, unfunded, defined benefit occupational
scheme, governed by the Teachers’ Pensions Regulations 2010 (as amended), and the Teachers’
Pension Scherme Reguiations 2014 {as amended). Thess reguiations apply to teachers in schools and
other educational eslabiishments, including academies, in England and Wates that aras maintained by local
authorities. |n addition, teachers in many independent and voluntary-aided schools and teachers and
lecturers i1 some establishments of further and higher education may he sfigible for mambership.
Membership ts automatic for fuli-time teachers and lecturers and, from 1 January 2007, automeatic too for
teachers and sclurers in par-time employment following appaintment or a change of contract. Teachers
and lecturers are abie fo opt out of the TPS.

The Teachers' Pension Budgeting and Valuation Account

Alhough members may he employsd by various bodies, thelr retirement and other pension benefis are
set out in regulations made under the Superannuation Act (1572) and Public Service Pensions Act {2013)
and are paid by public funds provided by Parliament. The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members
contribute on 2 ‘pay as you go 'basis — contributions from metabers, along with those made by empluyers,
are credited to the Exchequer under arrangements governed by the above Acts.

The Teachers’ Pensions Regulations 2010 require an annuat account, the Teachers' Pension Budgeting
and Valuation Account, to be kept of receipts and sxpenditure {including the cost of pension increases).
From 1 Agpril 2001, the Account has been credited with a real rate of retwn, which is eguivalent to
assuming that the balance in the Account is invested in notional investments that produce that real rate of
reture.
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27,

Pension commitments {continued)
Valuation of the Teachers' Pansion Scheme

The fatest valuation of the Teachars' Pension Scheme has now kaken place, in fine with directions issusd
by HM Treasury and using membership data as at 31 March 209 B. As a result of this valuation TPS
employers wilt pay an increased cantribution rafe of 23.88% from September 2019 (this includes the
administration svy of 0.8%). The timing of the implementation is to alige its introduction with employers
budget planning cycles. Until then, employers will pay the clrent rate of 16.48%.

Scheme Changes

The arrangements for a reformed Teachers' Pension Scheme, in line with the recommendations made by
Lord Hutton, in particular the infroduction of a Career Average Revalued Eamings (CARE)} scheme, were
implemented from 1 Apri 2015.

In December 2018, the Cowrt of Appeal held that transitional protection provisions comttained in the
reformed judicisl and firefighter pension schemes, intreduced as part of public service pension reforms in
2015, gave rise to direct age discrimination and were therefore unlawiul. The Supreme Coud, in a
decision made in June 2019, have refected the Government's application for permission te appeal the
Court of Appeal's ruling, The case will now be referred to an Employment Tribuinzt for 2 decision regarding
the remedy which will need to be offered to those merbers of tha twe schemes who were subjest of the
age discriminalian,

HM Treasury are clear that the ruling has imptications for the othar public service schemes, ncluding the
Teachers' Pension Scheme. Those implications are currsntly being consfdered and any fmpact on

scheme costs s expected to be toaked at within the next schems valuation, which s currently scheduted
fo ba based on April 2020 data and implemented in April 2023,

The ernployer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £811,424 (2075 - £757,015).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on tha Teachears' Pensionis website,

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfundad mueti-emplayer pension scheme. The
Academy Trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it wore a defined contribution
scheme. The Acaderny Trust has set out sbove the information avaifable on the stheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS s a funded defined benefi pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
admitistered funds. The total cantribution made for the year ended 31 August 2019 was £734,000 (2048 -
£4635,000}, of which employers contributions tatalled ERG1,000 (2018 - £361,000) and emplayees'
contribitions totalled £ 173,000 (2078 - £104,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 19.7
per cent for empfoyers and 5.5 to 12,5 per cent for employess,

Parliament has agresd, af the request of the Secretary of State for Fducation, fo a guaranies that, in the
avent of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Persion Schame liabilities waltd be meat by the
Bepartment for Education. The guarantee came into foree on 18 July 2013
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27. Pension commitments [continued)

Psrincipal actuarial assumptions

2019

%

Rate of increase in salaries .85
Rate of increase for pensions in paymentfinfiation 215
Discount rate for scheme fiabilities 1.90
Inflation assumption {RP1) 3.15
inflaticn assumption [CP1 215

2013
%

265
3.80
2.30
330
230

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements i moriaiity rates.
The assumed jife expectations on refirement age 83 are!

Retiring tnday
Males

Females

Ratiring In 20 years
Mtales

females

Sensitivity analysis

Dizcount rate +0.1%
Oiscount rate -G.1%
Mortality assumption - 1 year increase
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease

2019 2018
Years Years
22.8 22T
25.3 252
25.0 2448
27.6 27.5
2019 f018
£00G 2000
{295} {134%)
ing 143
402 183
{358) {158}

Page 63



THE TAPSCOTT LEARNKING TRLIST
(A Company Limited hy Guarankee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

2T

Pension commitments [continued)

The Academy Trust's share of the assels in the scheme was:

At 31 At 31 August

August 2049 2018
£ £
Equities 2459000 1,402,000
Gilts 161,600 80,000
Cther bongds 436,000 226,000
Property 429 000 229,000
Cash 341,000 171,000
Alternative assets 514,000 254 000
Total mariket value of assets 4,345,600 2,362,000
e T ——m, || e e—
The actual refurn on scheme assels was £236 000 [2018 - £1 12,000,
The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities are as follows:
2019 2018
£ £
Current service cost (1,173,000) (762,000}
Past service cost {136,000) -
Interest income 82,000 50,000
interest cost (164,000} {116,004
Total amaunt recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities (1,391,060) {828,000}
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:
2012 2018
£ £
At 1 September 5,140,000 -
Upon canversich 2,391,000 4,506,000
Current service cost 1,173,000 T2 000
Imterest cost 164,000 116,000
Empioyae contributions 173,000 104,000
Acluarial ossesf{gains) 1,627,000 (367,000)
Benefits paid {22.000) {11,000}
Past service costs 136,000 -
8,110,000

At 31 August 1G,752,000
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27,

Pension cammitments (continued}

Changes in the fair value of the Academy Trust's share of scheme assels were as follows:

AL % Septemhber
Upon conversion
Interest inctme

Actuarial gains

Employer cantributions
Employee contributions

Eenefits paid

At 31 August

Reconciliation of opening to closing defined benafit pension scheme Hability

Balance brought forward at 1 September

Defined benefit pension scheme obligation inherited

Defined benefit pension schems cost less contributions payable
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost
Actuarial losses { {gains)

At 31 August

Amounts recognlsed In the Balance Sheet are as follows:

Present value of the defined benefit abligation

Fair value of scheme asseis

2019 2018
5 £
2,362,000 -
1,034,000 1,798,000
82,000 50,000
153,000 60,000
561,000 361,000
173,000 104,000
(22,000)  (11.000)
4,340,000 2,362,000
2019 2018
£ £
2,74B,000 -
1,360,000 2,708,000
748,000 401,000
BZ,000 65,000
1474000 (427,000}
6,412,000 2,743,000
V—-ii—— ]
2019 2018
£ £
(10,752,000)  (5,110.000)
4,340,000 2,362,000

(6,412,000)

{2,748 000}
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24. Operating lease commitments

At 3t August 2019 the Academy Trust had commitments to make future minimum [easa payments under
non-cancellable operating feases as follows:

2019 2018

£ £

Withint 1 year 11,420 14,437
Between 1 and 5 years 36,147 21,072
41,587 36 402

e T w—

29.  Members' llabilicy

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to conttibute to the assets of the company in the
event of i being wound up while heishe is a Member, or within one year after hefshe ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be regquired, not exceeding £10 for the debis and lishiities contracted
before hafshe ceases to be & Member,

30. Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Academy Trust's operations and the composifion of the Board of Trustess
being drawn from local public and privale sector organisations, transactions may take place with
organisations in which Trustess have an interest. Al transactions involving such organisations are
conducted at arm's lenglh and in accordance with the Academy Trust's financia! regufations and normat
procurement procedures,

The Chair of Trustees, Andi Smith, was paid £3,355 (2018 - £2,359) by the Trust during the year for
services provide as National Leader of Governance, for which the Trust receives an income grant fo be
used for this work, Donations of £100 (2018 - £MiL} were given to the Trust in the year, fowards tha
Trust's annual awards programme in July 2019, No amounts were outstanding at the year end {2018 -
FNH)
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